
APPROVED MINUTES  
 

Page 1 of 15 
 

TOWN OF APEX 
TRANSIT ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 8, 2025 
4:00PM 

ௗ  
The Apex Transit Advisory Committee met Wednesday, January 8, 2025, at 4:00 pm in the 2nd 
Floor Council Chambers at Apex Town Hall, located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex, North 
Carolina.ௗ  
 
This meeting was open to the public.ௗ Members of the public were able to attend this 
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel. The 
recording of this meeting can be viewed here: Apex Transit Advisory Committee 01.08.2025 
YouTube 
  
  
[ATTENDANCE]ௗ  
 
Transit Advisory Committee Members  
Andrew Werking, Chair  
Nick Bryant, Vice-Chair  
Patrick Kirley  
Linda Barrett  
Frances Williams  
Wendy Perry  
Lauren Staudenmaier, Ex-Officio  
Joanna Helms, Ex-Officio  
Angela Reincke, Ex-Officio  
Brett Gant, Councilmember   
  
Staff  
Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager  
Katie Schwing, Senior Planner-Long Range Transit 
Alicia Harris, Planner II 
Allen Coleman, Town Clerk 
Ashley Gentry, Deputy Town Clerk 
  
  
[WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS]ௗ  
  
  Chair Werking welcomed everyone and wished all Happy New Year. He asked each 
attending member and staff to introduce themselves. 
 



APPROVED MINUTES  
 

Page 2 of 15 
 

  
   
[MEETING MINUTES]  
 

Chair Werking asked if there were any discussion for the minutes for the October 
2024 minutes. He moved to a possible motion. 

 
A motion was made by Member Barrett, seconded by Member Williams, to approve 

October 9, 2024, minutes. ௗ  
 
VOTE: UNANIMOUS (9-0) 
 
 [COUNCIL WORK SESSION UPDATES – BOARDS AND COMMITTEES]ௗ  
 
 Allen Coleman, City Town Clerk gave an update on the Council Work Session Update 
on Boards and Committees. He gave a high-level overview of the discussion at the Work 
Session. 
[SLIDE 1] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED MINUTES  
 

Page 3 of 15 
 

[SLIDE 2] 

 
[SLIDE 3] 

 
[SLIDE 4] 

 



APPROVED MINUTES  
 

Page 4 of 15 
 

[SLIDE 5] 

 
[SLIDE 6] 

 
 Member Williams asked about what the timing was for adding the three members 
were. 
 Clerk Coleman explained the process for the UDO Amendments and the timing. 
 Council Member Gantt suggested an overview of the Bike Apex Plan and the 
Sidewalk Priority Plan and the history to understand the responsibilities. 
 Ms. Schwing gave an overview of the Comprehensive Bicycle Apex Plan. She said the 
Comprehensive Pedestrian Plan was integrated into the overall Townwide Transportation Plan 
and gave information on what was included in that plan. 
 Council Member Gantt said there was a spreadsheet that ranks the sidewalk projects 
and suggested that the Board Members review advising on policies. 
 Ms. Schwing explained the Capital Improvement Plan and how it is utilized by Town 
Council in the budget process.   
 Ms. Cox said that they have the same prioritization for CIP for Greenways. 
 Clerk Coleman said that maybe there should be a Work Session for an orientation.   



APPROVED MINUTES  
 

Page 5 of 15 
 

 
[SLIDE 7] 

 
 Clerk Coleman gave detailed information on the Term limits. 
 Chair Werking suggested a discussion to have about expanding some of the seats. 
 Council Member Gantt suggested a grandfathering clause may be helpful. 
 Clerk Coleman said this was good feedback given the Board scope has changed and 
the significant transition this Board has experienced.  
[SLIDE 8] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED MINUTES  
 

Page 6 of 15 
 

[SLIDE 9] 

 
ௗ  
[TRANSIT PRIORTIZATION STUDY]  
 Katie Schwing, Senior Planner-Long Range Transit gave an update on the Transit 
Prioritation Study conducted in the Planning Department and the next steps for the Transit in 
Apex.  
[SLIDE 1] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED MINUTES  
 

Page 7 of 15 
 

[SLIDE 2] 

 
[SLIDE 3] 

 
[SLIDE 4] 

 



APPROVED MINUTES  
 

Page 8 of 15 
 

[SLIDE 5] 

 
[SLIDE 6] 

 
[SLIDE 7] 

 



APPROVED MINUTES  
 

Page 9 of 15 
 

[SLIDE 8] 

 
[SLIDE 9] 

 
[SLIDE 10] 

 



APPROVED MINUTES  
 

Page 10 of 15 
 

[SLIDE 11] 

 
  
[WAKE TRANSIT PLAN UPDATE]  
 
 Katie Schwing, Senior Planner-Long Range Transit said that this was to make the 
Board aware on the Wake Transit Plan update which is the Countywide 10-year plan for 
spending the funds that are being collected through the ½ cent sale tax and other revenue 
and how it will guide how the funding will be used. She gave a presentation: 
[SLIDE 1] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED MINUTES  
 

Page 11 of 15 
 

[SLIDE 2] 

 
[SLIDE 3] 

 
[SLIDE 4] 

 



APPROVED MINUTES  
 

Page 12 of 15 
 

[SLIDE 5] 

 
[SLIDE 6] 

 
  
[FY26 CFA FUNDING APPLICATION UPDATES]  
  Katie Schwing, Senior Planner-Long Range Transit gave updates on items that were 
discussed at the Transit Advisory Committee October meeting and that this was the main 
funding for Go Apex through Wake Transit which is a 50% match. l 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED MINUTES  
 

Page 13 of 15 
 

[SLIDE 1] 

 
  
[INFORMATION UPDATES]  
 Katie Schwing, Senior Planner-Long Range Transit asked if there were any questions 
on Informational Update handouts. 
[SLIDE 1] 

 
  Chair Werking asked if this was three months behind on current data from Go Cary. 
 Ms. Schwing said that the November data was received in early January and typically 
the data for November would be received in the third week of December. She said that 
December’s data should be in the next week.  
 Chair Werking asked if there was information from Go Cary on feedback on why 
September, October and November’s percentage has dropped.  
 Ms. Schwing said that they are working on a tool that is supposed to provide better 
information about the “on time” and it is taking longer than anticipated. 
 Chair Werking asked if a request could be made to confirm that specific time point. 



APPROVED MINUTES  
 

Page 14 of 15 
 

 Vice Chair Bryant recommended that the drop off at the Senior Center first and then 
circle back to the Municipal building. 
 Ms. Schwing said that they could talk with Go Cary about this and try shifting the two 
drop-offs.  
 Ms. Cox gave an update on the Mobility Hub Feasibility Study. She invited the 
Committee Members to the next meeting that would be on February 26th as an Open House 
from 4p-6p at the Senior Center. She gave communication options for the meeting.  
 
[OTHER BUSINESS]  
  Chair Werking moved to Other Business and asked Member Williams about the cost 
per boarding. 
 Member Williams asked about the cost for riders and about targeted marketing to 
increase the ridership. She asked Ms. Schwing about the goal for the cost for riders per route. 
 Ms. Schwing said that the CFA program that the funding comes from is the target for 
the ridership and cost per boarding. She gave information on the target for the next few 
years. She said that there is a corresponding cost per boarding, is $25.50 for year three and 
then steps down. She said that the approved costs were in 2018, and that inflation wasn’t 
considered and that these goals were not as reasonable. She said they are in discussions with 
CAMPO about the target goal. She said that the cost for the fee to Go Cary continues to go 
up and that ridership would go up each year. 
 Chair Werking said that there had not been much time planning how to grow and 
improve the service. He suggested that at the next meeting or before to have a discussion on 
planning the growth of the service and performance.  
 Member Williams asked to consider meeting more frequently or schedule a special 
meeting.  
 Chair Werking recommended getting approval for increasing the meeting frequency 
and asked what the Committee Members what they would want to increase to. j 
 Member Williams suggested bi-monthly. 
 Vice Chair Bryant agreed with bi-monthly. 
 Member Barrett agreed to increase the meeting schedule. 
 Member Perry agreed with bi-monthly. 
 Member Kirley suggested one special meeting regarding the bike and pedestrian, 
for an informational meeting. 
 Ms. Schwing said she would refer this information to the Clerk’s office. 
 Chair Werking encouraged the other members to email Clerk Coleman about how 
this. 
 
 A motion was made by Member Williams and seconded by Member Kirley to 
request a bi-monthly frequency for the Transit Advisory Committee from the Town Clerk.  
 
VOTE: UNANIMOUS (0-9)  
  



APPROVED MINUTES  
 

Page 15 of 15 
 

[ADJOURN]  
   
  
  
Chair Werking announced the meeting adjourned at 5:40 p.m. 
  
  

Andy Werkingௗௗ  
Chairௗௗ  

ௗ  
Submitted for consideration and approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman.ௗௗ  
ௗ  
Minutes approved on ______________ day of _______________ 2025.  
  
  

  

 



Page 1 of 23 
 

TOWN OF APEX 
REGULAR TRANSIT ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 9, 2025 
4:00PM 

   
The Apex Transit Advisory Committee met for a Regular Transit Advisory Committee Meeting 
Wednesday, April 9, 2025 at 4:00 PM in the Council Chambers, Apex Town Hall, located at 73 
Hunter Street in Apex, North Carolina.  
 
This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this 
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel. The 
recording of this meeting can be viewed here:  Apex Transit Advisory Committee 04.09.2025 
 
[ATTENDANCE]   
Transit Advisory Committee Members  
Andrew Werking, Chair  
Nick Bryant, Vice-Chair  
Patrick Kirley  
Linda Barrett  
Frances Williams  
Wendy Perry  
Angela Reincke, Parks Representative 
Brett Gant, Councilmember   
  
Staff  
Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager  
Katie Schwing, Senior Planner-Long Range Transit   
  
  
[WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS]   
 
 Chair Werking welcomed everyone and moved to Meeting Minutes.   
  
 [MEETING MINUTES]  
 

Katie Schwing, Senior Planner-Long Range Transit said that the agenda order had 
been revised. 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bo6dEcnj-F0


Page 2 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 1] 

 
 [SLIDE 2] 

 
 

Chair Werking asked if there was any discussion for the minutes for the November 
18, 2024, Special Transit Advisory Committee meeting and January 8, 2025, minutes and for 
possible motion. 
 

A motion was made by Vice-Chair Bryant, seconded by Member Kirley, to approve 
November 18, 2024, Special Transit Advisory Committee meeting and January 8, 2025, 
minutes. 
 
VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) with Member Perry absent for vote 
  
   
[COUNCIL WORK SESSION UPDATES – BOARDS AND COMMITTEES]  
 



Page 3 of 23 
 

 Town Clerk Coleman gave an overview of the UDO and Town Code updates. He also 
gave an outline of the changes to the Transit Committee and what the next steps for the Town 
Code schedule for the changes would be. He said that the staff would directly communicate 
with the board members about the changes and updates with the staff liaisons being copied 
on the communications.  
[SLIDE 1] 

 
  
[GoCARY – HIGH-LEVEL OVERVIEW OF EXPANSION OVER TIME] 
 

Katie Schwing, Senior Planner-Long Range Transit gave the following presentation: 
[SLIDE 1] 

  



Page 4 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 2] 

 
[SLIDE 3] 

  
[SLIDE 4] 

  



Page 5 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 5] 

  
[SLIDE 6] 

 
[SLIDE 7] 

 



Page 6 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 8] 

 
[SLIDE 9] 

  
[SLIDE 10] 

  



Page 7 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 11] 

  
[SLIDE 12] 

  
   



Page 8 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 13] 

  
 
[WAKE TRANSIT UPDATE]  
 
 Katie Schwing, Senior Planner-Long Range Transit gave the following presentation: 
[SLIDE 1] 

  



Page 9 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 2] 

  
[SLIDE 3] 

  



Page 10 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 4] 
 

 
[SLIDE 5] 
 

 



Page 11 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 6] 
 

 
 
 
[TRANSIT PRIORITAZION STUDY] 
 
 Katie Schwing, Senior Planner-Long Range Transit gave the following presentation: 
[SLIDE 1] 

  



Page 12 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 2] 

  
[SLIDE 3] 

  
[SLIDE 4] 

 



Page 13 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 5] 

 
[SLIDE 6] 

 
[SLIDE 7] 

 



Page 14 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 8] 

 
[SLIDE 9] 

 
[SLIDE 10] 

 



Page 15 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 11] 

 
[SLIDE 12] 

 
[SLIDE 13] 

 



Page 16 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 14] 

 
[SLIDE 15] 

 
[SLIDE 16] 

 



Page 17 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 17] 

 
[SLIDE 18] 

  
[SLIDE 19] 

 



Page 18 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 20] 

 
[SLIDE 21] 

 
[SLIDE 22] 

 



Page 19 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 23] 

 
[SLIDE 24] 

 
[SLIDE 25] 

 



Page 20 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 26] 

 
[SLIDE 27] 

 
[SLIDE 28] 

 



Page 21 of 23 
 

[SLIDE 29] 

 
[SLIDE 30] 

 
 
 
   
[SHOPPING CARTS AND BUS STOPS – PREVENTION AND MITIGATION STRATEGIES]  
  



Page 22 of 23 
 

 Alisha Harris, Planner II gave the following presentation: 
[SLIDE 1] 

 
[SLIDE 2] 
 
  
[INFORMATIONAL UPDATES]  
 
 Katie Schwing, Senior Planner-Long Range Transit gave the following updates: 
[SLIDE 1] 

 
 
[OTHER BUSINESS]  
 
 Ms. Schwing gave term reminders of the seats that were up for re-appointments as of 
July 2025 which included Chair Werking, Vice-Chair Bryant and Gaye’s seats. She said that if 
anyone wants to keep serving to let her know before the next meeting. She said tht the 
Advisory Board application process is currently open. She said that there is a Wake Transit 



Page 23 of 23 
 

101 Session at CAMPO Offices on April 30th, 2025 at 1:30pm. She also said that PeakFest 
Outreach is on Saturday, May 3rd, 2025 (9am-5pm). She said that EarthFest is the weekend 
prior to PeakFest.  
 Chair Werking asked if there was any other business to discuss. 
[SLIDE 1] 

 
 
[ADJOURN] 
  
 Chair Werking announced the meeting adjourned at 6:08pm. 
  
  

Andy Werking    
Chair    

   
Submitted for consideration and approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman.    
   
Minutes approved on ______________ day of _______________ 2025.    
 



 

Page 1 of 22 
 

TOWN OF APEX 
MULTIMODAL TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD 

WEDNESDAY, JULY 9, 2025 
4:00PM 

 
The Apex Multimodal Transportation Advisory Board met Wednesday, July 9, 2025, at 4:00 
pm in the 2nd Floor Council Chambers at Apex Town Hall, located at 73 Hunter Street in 
Apex, North Carolina. 
 
This meeting was open to the public. Members of the public were able to attend this meeting 
in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel. The recording of 
this meeting can be viewed here: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=-8X0ULjqVZ8&t=1894s  
 
 
[ATTENDANCE] 
 
Multimodal Transportation Advisory Board Members 
Andrew Werking, Chair 
Nick Bryant, Vice-Chair 
Linda Barrett 
Gaye Williams 
Wendy Perry 
Absent: Patrick Kirley, Board Member and Brett Gantt, Councilmember 
 
Staff 
Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 
Katie Schwing, Senior Planner-Long Range Transit 
Allen Coleman, Town Clerk 
Ashley Gentry, Deputy Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
[WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS] 
 
 Chair Werking welcomed everyone. 
 
[MEETING MINUTES]  
 

Chair Werking asked if there were any discussion for the minutes for the April 9, 2025 
minutes and moved to a possible motion. 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=-8X0ULjqVZ8&t=1894s


 

Page 2 of 22 
 

 Member Bryant suggested that the April 9, 2025, minutes include more detail, noting 
that much of the discussion was missing.   
 Member Williams stated that she preferred the minutes to contain more of a 
summary than verbatim detail.  
 Member Williams requested that her name be reflected as Gaye Williams instead of 
Frances Williams, as she goes by her middle name.  
 Town Clerk Coleman confirmed that the correction would be made to the minutes 
and the agenda materials from this point forward.  He stated that the Clerk’s Office would 
revise the April 9, 2025 minutes and bring them back for approval at the September 10, 2025, 
meeting.  
 
All Board Members were in consensus in including more detail in the April 9, 2025, minutes 
and bring back September 10, 2025.   
 
 
[TOWN BOARDS AND COMMITTEES UPDATES] 
 
 Deputy Clerk Gentry gave an overview of the updated Resident Advisory Policy and 
process. She said that on December 17th, 2024, at the Work Session changes were approved 
by the Council and one of the changes was the name of the Board from the Transportation 
Advisory Committee to the Multimodal Transportation Advisory Board (MTAB).  She said that 
this expanded the scope of the Board to include biking, walking, transit and any other related 
infrastructure. The updated scope also increased the regular voting members and added one 
youth voting member. She gave information on the recruitment and application process. She 
said that the new members of the MTAB are Thanh Schado, Noah Toppe and Mark Spanoli 
and Gaye Williams were re-appointed to a full two-year term from filling a partial term. She 
said that there were no applications for the youth position. She said that the mayor elected 
Linda Barrett as the next Chair and Noah Toppe as the next Vice-Chair of the MTAB. She said 
that both new and re-appointed members will attend orientation. She said that they would be 
re-advertising for the youth and vacant positions.   
 
[FY2025-2026 MEETING CALENDAR] 
 
 Deputy Clerk Gentry gave an update on the Multimodal Transportation Advisory 
Board calendar. She gave the updated schedule of the Board moving from meeting quarterly 
to bi-monthly. She said that one of the new members had proposed a new start time from 
4:00pm to 5:00pm. She said the meeting will be every other month, 2nd Wednesday at 
4:00pm in the Council Chambers and will be conducted live stream. She asked if a member 
could not attend a meeting to let her, Ms. Cox and the Chair, know. She asked what the 
Board’s feedback was for the start time. 
 Member Williams asked if changing the time from 4:00pm to 5:00pm would be ok 
with the staff. 



 

Page 3 of 22 
 

 Katie Schwing, Senior Planner-Long Range Transit, said that it would work for her, but 
noted that she was not sure with the scope of the Board changing, there may be additional 
staff joining the meetings.  
 Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager, said that she could not answer whether 
this would work for the new staff who would need to participate. She noted that the request 
was after 5:00pm due to the workday hours and it would probably need to be at 5:30pm at 
the earliest.  
 Deputy Clerk Gentry said that most of the Boards meet at 6:00pm. with variations of 
other meeting times for some boards.   
 Chair Werking said that some of these meetings have run long with just 
transportation matters and now that the additional scope is being added to this Board, that 
the meetings could run longer.  
 Deputy Clerk Gentry said that this discussion could be brought back to the 
September 10th meeting when the new Board members would be in attendance. She noted 
that the next meeting would remain at 4:00pm and there would be more discussion on 
changing the time.  
 Town Clerk Coleman said that the new calendar should be adopted with the regular 
time with the current calendar only going through the July meeting. He said that there could 
be an agenda item set to discuss and possibly amend the meeting time at the next meeting. 
 
 Chair Werking asked if there was a motion to accept the calendar as presented.  
 
 A motion was made by Member Williams and seconded by Member Barrett to 
approve the FY2025-2026 Meeting Calendar with the intent to be reintroduced at the 
September 10th meeting to discuss the start time of the meetings. 
 
VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) with Patrick Kirley absent. 
 
 Ms. Schwing asked if the Board wanted the members to share their availabilities for 
the time to work at the next meeting. 
 Chair Werking said to come prepared at the next meeting to work through the time 
of the meetings at that time.  
 
[TRANSIT PRIORTIZATION STUDY UPDATES] 
 
 Katie Schwing, Senior Planner-Long Range Transit, gave an update on the Transit 
Prioritization Study and asked for feedback on the draft staff recommendations developed for 
the study that are out for public comment and review. She said that finalizing the 
recommendation for the study by the end of July or early August was the goal so that it could 
be brought to Council in late August or early September meeting. She gave the following 
presentation: 



 

Page 4 of 22 
 

[SLIDE 1] 

 
[SLIDE 2] 

  
  Member Bryant asked if this would be back to the committee on September 10th.  
 Ms. Schwing said that it would probably go to the Council meeting for approval 
before the next MTAB meeting in September.  
 Chair Werking asked when the public comment period would end. 
 Ms. Schwing said Sunday, August 3rd, would be the last day. She said that she was 
continuing to advertise and seeking feedback with the Town newsletter, social media, flyer 
and postcard distributions and putting a channel card in the buses.  
 Member Perry asked if there were any placards available for distribution.  
 Ms. Schwing said that she would get them to her.  



 

Page 5 of 22 
 

[SLIDE 3] 

 
[SLIDE 4] 

  
[SLIDE 5] 

  



 

Page 6 of 22 
 

 Member Williams asked for clarification on the funding approval for the 30-minute 
change. 
 Ms. Schwing said that Community Funding Area (CFA) funding had been applied for 
FY26 to start in Q4 and was approved in June 2025. She said that Q4 was the soonest GoCary 
was able to commit to having a second vehicle and operator available.  She said that the 
Sunday service funding was approved for this fall but were waiting for the logistics with 
GoWake Access and they are working through bus improvements.  
 Vice-Chair Bryant asked when sidewalk connections would begin to be discussed for 
the buses to run or could it be considered and when the entire multimodal portion would be 
implemented. 
 Ms. Schwing said that this current meeting was the last “real” TAC meeting and at the 
next meeting it would broaden out more. She said that for a future agenda it could be looked 
at the state of all of the sidewalk projects.  
 Ms. Cox said that there may need to be some elements of the orientation that would 
be for the entire Board because of the new scope of the Board. She said that there is 
prioritization for transit connections and many of the sidewalks that are in development are 
funded through transit. She said this would come back to a future agenda. 
[SLIDE 6] 

 
 Chair Werking asked what the targeted timeframe for the new GoApex Route #1. 
 Ms. Schwing said that the implementation start date was FY28. She said that in FY27 
they would work through contracts and potentially install new bus stops.  
 Chair Werking asked if the purple route was the preferred route on side #6. 
 Ms. Schwing said that it was the route that would hit most destinations, this included 
downtown and the library which had been requested for these areas.  
 Member Williams asked about the overlap with Route #1. 
 Ms. Schwing said that the route would overlap in the downtown area, and the idea 
would be to set up the schedule to do pulse point transfers to be able to transfer in either 
direction from places downtown. She discussed a future downtown mobility hub.  

Member Williams said that ridership would improve the convenience to downtown. 



 

Page 7 of 22 
 

 Chair Werking asked if Mason Street or Town Campus would be the hub.  
 Ms. Schwing said that would probably be the default and near the existing layover for 
GoApex Route #1 which would cause buses to loop around to drop off then loop around and 
pick up.  
[SLIDE 7] 

 
 Chair Werking asked if there were any future plans for using the new routing to the 
downtown area. 
 Ms. Schwing said that they are continuing to look at this. 

Chair Werking said that one thought is that the downtown access would effectively 
be doubled by the increase in frequency to Route # 1 which is already funded and that would 
be doubling downtown access with this route.  

Ms. Schwing said that it would possibly be going from a 45-minute trip to a 15-
minute trip to get downtown.  

Vice-Chair Bryant asked if the feedback about increasing downtown access was 
received on the current or previous survey. 

Ms. Schwing said it was from last year’s survey.  
Chair Werking said that the survey didn’t reveal if people rode the bus but that just 

people were more interested in where they wanted to go the most. 
Ms. Schwing said yes. She said that these are still concepts and may need more 

refinement, especially the exact downtown route. She said that if they went with GoApex 
Route #1 that there would be some areas that would not be served and gave some of those 
examples of areas.  

Vice-Chair Bryant said that he would like to know what the areas not served would 
look like. 

Chair Werking asked if the timing for Route #1 to be changed would be similar the 
other proposals. 

Vice-Chair Bryant asked if there were any decisions made around taking off that 
portion around ridership at those stops that may be eliminated. 



 

Page 8 of 22 
 

Chair Werking said that ridership was looked at and it was not very high at those 
stops.  She said that ridership generally is the highest around the shopping centers. She said 
that the mauve colored line is the new route that Cary is working on to introduce to connect 
to downtown Apex and downtown Cary and it will be coming down North Salem Street, down 
Center Street to Mason Street Municipal Building where Apex is working with them on the 
timing for time transfers this November. She explained that it’s about a quarter of a mile that 
people are willing to walk to a bus stop.  

 
[SLIDE 8] 

 
 Vice-Chair Bryant said that conceptually this looks good but there is nothing definite 
at this time as far as the development.  
[SLIDE 9] 

 
 Vice-Chair Bryant said that it is a concept but wasn’t sure what was the point of 
serving Lufkin Road. He said that if this had to happen then possibly leaning against serving 
Lufkin Road unless Lufkin Road is the connection to serve Highway 55.  



 

Page 9 of 22 
 

 Chair Williams asked why Lufkin Road was pulled into the scenario in route concept 
D.  
 Ms. Schwing said that Center Street has been requested from residents that live in the 
area between downtown and US-1 for access to downtown, from the large multifamily 
apartment communities in the area and Apex High School students that are walking home. 
She said that there are a lot of jobs in the Business Park area.  
 Chair Werking asked if there were specific requests from businesses or potential 
businesses for bus service in that area. 
 Ms. Schwing said that that had not heard from the businesses and maybe it would be 
worth exploring.  
 Member Williams asked if this option would serve the mobile home community that 
was near this area. 
 Ms. Schwing said that this route would be the closest. 
 Member Williams asked if Lufkin Road would have to be included to make this 
happen.  
 Ms. Schwing said that it wouldn’t have to include Lufkin Road. 
 Vice-Chair Bryant said that this was skipping the industrial park and when Jesse Drive 
happens and looping it back over to Highway 55, but it could almost be combined with 
Veridia with the Veridia portion and that eliminates the 30-minute portion.  
 Chair Werking said that two 30-minute routes could make an hour route.  
 Member Williams said that if you are going from Center Street to US-1 then it 
wouldn’t be far from the mobile home community. She asked if this was the fourth concept in 
priority. 
 Ms. Schwing confirmed that it was the fourth concept in priority. 
  
  
 
  
[SLIDE 10] 

 



 

Page 10 of 22 
 

 Chair Werking said that it was a good job covering the areas and the increase to the 
potential frequency to downtown is supported. He said that concept 4 is identified as a low 
priority and is appropriately identified.  
 Member Williams said that routes that include the library were exciting. 
 Vice-Chair Bryant asked to see the slides of concept A and B. He asked if B was 
modifying Route #1 
 Ms. Schwing said yes and that it could happen at the same time.  
 Chair Werking said previously the library had tried to be included in the original 
Route #1 and it would not work from a timing perspective, so being able to include it now is a 
good thing.  There were further discussions about the ridership in Pleasant Park and Scotts 
Ridge Community.  
 Vice-Chair Bryant asked the Board if A should be prioritized higher than B. The 
overall response was yes.  
 Chair Werking said that because the frequency of Route #1 in the concepts is already 
increasing, he put A first.  
 Vice-Chair Bryant said that theoretically it may be possible to do both at the same 
time. 
 Member Williams said this gives more visibility so that people will become more 
aware.   
 Member Perry said that there may have been conversations about it being difficult to 
turn around at the library. 
 Ms. Schwing said that the library property is owned by Apex and leased and 
operated by Wake County, so they would have to work with Wake County to make 
improvements like installing a bus stop. She said that it is a difficult place to get a bus in and 
out of the library, but they feel like it is important enough to do everything possible to get a 
stop at the library.   
[SLIDE 11] 

 
 Vice-Chair Bryant asked if GoTriangle looked at Apex expanding new routes and how 
do they re-evaluate door-to-door service based on adding a new route. 



 

Page 11 of 22 
 

 Ms. Schwing asked Vice-Chair Bryant if he was specifically asking about the GoWake 
Access that operates the door-to-door service. She said that they pay the County for that. 
 Vice-Chair Bryan said that he wanted to make sure that they gave feedback.  
 Ms. Schwing said that Sunday’s have been a sticking point, and they are working 
through Sunday services. She said that they have funding program constraints that are 
offered. She said if the town wanted to cover the cost of the trips, they would be able to 
operate the route. 
 Chair Werking said that with the other priorities discussed particularly adding service 
routes and increasing frequency and making changes to existing routes, increasing the 
priority of the transfer area is appropriate.  

Ms. Schwing said that the more routes they operate, the more a Mobility Hub would 
be needed.  
 Chair Werking agreed.  
 
[SLIDE 12] 

 
[SLIDE 13] 

 



 

Page 12 of 22 
 

 Vice-Chair Bryant asked if phase one requires acquisition of any building property.  
 Ms. Cox said that phase one would rely on a new connection to the adjacent 
commercial parking lot so buses could move through and not have to turn around and they 
just loop through. Phase two is where the grand vision starts to come together.  
 Ms. Schwing said the rest of the presentation was informational and the Board could 
send her comments. She said she would email the slides to the Board as well.  
[SLIDE 14] 

 
[SLIDE 15] 

 



 

Page 13 of 22 
 

[SLIDE 16] 

 
[SLIDE 17] 

 
[SLIDE 18] 

  



 

Page 14 of 22 
 

[SLIDE 19] 

  
[SLIDE 20] 

  



 

Page 15 of 22 
 

[SLIDE 21] 

  
 Ms. Schwing said that due to the time, she would gather additional comments from 
the Board through email or by phone to talk through the information. She also encouraged 
the Board to go to the project web page, apexnc.org/transit study, and complete the 
comment form.  
[SLIDE 22] 

  



 

Page 16 of 22 
 

[SLIDE 23] 

  
[SLIDE 24] 

  
[SLIDE 25] 

 



 

Page 17 of 22 
 

[SLIDE 26] 

 
[SLIDE 27] 

  
[SLIDE 28] 

  



 

Page 18 of 22 
 

[SLIDE 29] 

  
 
[WAKE TRANSIT PLAN UPDATE] 
 
 Katie Schwing Katie Schwing, Senior Planner-Long Range Transit, said that the Wake 
Transit Plan Update would take place in September.  
[SLIDE 1] 

  



 

Page 19 of 22 
 

[SLIDE 2] 

 
[SLIDE 3] 

  
[SLIDE 4] 

  



 

Page 20 of 22 
 

[SLIDE 5] 

 
[SLIDE 6] 

  
[SLIDE 7] 

  



 

Page 21 of 22 
 

[SLIDE 8] 

  
 
[INFORMATION UPDATES] 
 
 Chair Werking asked about the cost per boarding and on time percentage. He said 
that starting in January the average cost of boarding has increased significantly, and this was 
reflective of a significant increase in direct service costs.  
 Ms. Schwing said it was a combination of two factors, the number of people that are 
riding and the cost per hour for operating costs. She gave an overview of the history and 
breakdown of why the cost has increased.   
 Chair Werking said that there was an increase of about 25% increase in cost per 
boarding and a significantly lower decline in average boardings per trip. He asked why the 
ratio changed so significantly without something else changing.  
 Ms. Schwing said that she would look at the numbers and that it’s possible there’s an 
error.  
 Vice-Chair Bryant said it was consistent throughout 2025. 
 Vice-Chair Bryant said that the on-time average was 94-95% but the most recent were 
just under 77% for the on-time average and would like to see this average back up. 
 Ms. Schwing said that there had been conversations with GoCary and their analysts 
looked through the on-time numbers and have identified a few issues, one is vehicle issues, 
South on Highway 55 gets congested along with some other issues. 
 Vice-Chair Bryant said that if there is constant bus issues and constant routes being 
skipped it goes back five years ago where it was said, where does the accountability for the 
service that is provided start or stop? 
 Chair Werking said that accountability is a concern and the rapidly increasing costs 
for boarding is a concern. He said it would be beneficial to the Town to provide this 
committee with an understanding of where the break point is, what are the fixed costs per 
year for GoApex Route #1 as it exists right now and at what point does it become the same or 
cheaper for the Town to directly provide the service. He said that this information should be 



 

Page 22 of 22 
 

available to provide to the Council and if necessary, a recommendation that might be a 
worthwhile investment for the Town to provide the services itself.  
 
[OTHER BUSINESS] 
 

Member Williams thanked Chair Werking and Vice-Chair Bryant for all of their work 
and dedication to the Board and behalf of the Town, thank you.  

Member Barrett said that both have been amazing leaders for the Advisory Board 
and thanked them.  

Member Perry said that they had both made a difference. She said that her daughter 
is disabled, and this is how she gets everywhere and it such a huge difference in her life, so 
thank you. 

Chair Werking thanked Ms. Cox and Schwing and all of the staff in the Clerk’s Office, 
Parks and Recreation, Economic Development and everyone else that is in attendance. He 
said that they had made the work of this committee possible.  

Ms. Cox said that she appreciated both Chair Werking and Vice-Chair Bryant for being 
open to ideas and inquisitive and thoughtful about how we move forward. She said that the 
ex officio members would also be missed.   
 

  
[ADJOURN] 
 Ms. Schwing said to get a cupcake.  
 

Chair Werking announced the meeting adjourned at 5:40pm. 
 

Andy Werking 
Chair 

 
Submitted for consideration and approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman. 
Minutes approved on the 12th day of November, 2025. 



TOWN OF APEX 
MULTIMODAL TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 12, 2025 
4:00PM 

  
The Apex Multimodal Transportation Advisory Board met Wednesday, November 12, 2025 at 
4:00 pm on the 2nd Floor Council Chambers at Apex Town Hall, located at 73 Hunter Street in 
Apex, North Carolina.  
 
This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this 
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel. The 
recording of this meeting can be viewed 
here: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=_EuJK93YB04 
 
[ATTENDANCE]  
Multimodal Transportation Advisory Board Members 
Linda Barrett, Chair 
Noah Toppe, Vice-Chair 
Patrick Kirley 
Gaye Williams 
Mark Spanioli 
Elizabeth Brunner 
Samiksha Kadari, Youth Representative (arrived late) 
Absent: Board Members, Wendy Perry and Jennifer Ahler 
 
Staff 
Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 
Katie Swing, Senior Planner-Long Range Transit  
Chris Watson, Planner II 
 
[WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS]  
 
 Chair Barrett opened the meeting and welcomed all in attendance and asked each 
member to give a brief introduction. 
 

• Patrick Kirley – Apex resident for 25 years, he has been on the Advisory Board for 1 
year and works at an Engineering firm with experience in IT and Transportation 
Planning. 

• Gaye Williams – Apex resident for 13 years, she has been on the Advisory Board for 1 
year and recently retired from Cisco Systems. 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=_EuJK93YB04


• Noah Toppe (Vice Chair) – New committee member, has been an Apex resident 7.5 
years, he works for UNCC Health in real estate, facilities, and air operations and is 
excited to support transit-related discussions. 

• Linda Barrett (Chair) – Apex resident for 20+ years and works at WakeMed in 
Business Development and community health, excited about ongoing multimodal 
transportation efforts. 

• Elizabeth Brunner – Lifelong bus rider and an Apex resident for 22 years, this is her 
first committee meeting; She is a grant writer but a bus advocate at heart.  

• Mark Spanioli – Apex resident for 5 years, he is an ETJ representative and the Director 
of Engineering for the Town of Morrisville, he works closely with topics relevant to the 
Advisory Board. 

 
[MULTIMODAL TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD ORIENTATION] 
 
 Chris Watson, Staff Liaison for the Town of Apex, Planner 2, introduced himself and 
gave an overview of the agenda for this meeting. 
[SLIDE 1] 

 



[SLIDE 2] 

 
[SLIDE 3] 

 
 Shannon Cox, Long Range Planner Manager, introduced staff and gave the Board an 
overview related to Transit, and mentioned she will give more on the Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Planning work at the next meeting.  



[SLIDE 4] 

 
 
[MEETING MINUTES] 
 

A motion was made by Member Kirley, seconded by Member Spanioli, to approve 
the April 9, 2025 Special Transit Advisory Committee and July 9, 2025 Multimodal 
Transportation Advisory Board meeting minutes. 
 
VOTE: Unanimous (6-0) with Members Perry, Ahler, and Kadari absent for vote. 
 
[FY2025 – 2026 MEETING CALENDAR] 
 
 Town Clerk, Allen Coleman presented the proposed 2026 meeting calendar to the 
Board. He noted that the Board would transition from quarterly meetings to bi-monthly 
meetings and that the November 2026 meeting was moved to the first Wednesday of the 
month due to Veteran’s Day.  



[SLIDE 1] 

 
 

A motion was made by Member Williams, seconded by Member Spanioli, to 
approve the FY2025 - 2026 bi-monthly meeting times. 
 
VOTE: Unanimous (6-0) with Members Perry, Ahler, and Kadari absent for vote. 
 
 Clerk Coleman introduced Samiksha Kadari, the youth representative board member, 
and asked her to introduce herself. 
 Member Kadari said that she is an 11th grader and was excited to be on the advisory 
board to raise more awareness in Apex.  
 Clerk Coleman then swore in youth representative member Kadari. 
 
[TRANSIT PLANS AND FUNDING OVERVIEW] 
 
 Katie Schwing gave a high-level overview of the transit plans and funding that 
influences Apex’s transit. She gave the following presentation: 



[SLIDE 1] 

 
[SLIDE 2] 

 
[SLIDE 3] 

 



[SLIDE 4] 

 
[SLIDE 5] 

 
[SLIDE 6] 

 



[SLIDE 7] 

 
[SLIDE 8] 

 
[SLIDE 9] 

 



[SLIDE 10] 

 
[SLIDE 11] 

 
[SLIDE 12] 

 



[SLIDE 13] 

 
Ms. Schwing asked if anyone had any questions. 
Member Brunner suggested that if the 30-minute frequency and Sunday service were 

deferred from October to Spring, that it be communicated with passengers. 
Ms. Schwing said that there had not been an official announcement for October 2025 

to be the launch date but they can work towards communicating this. She said there is 
hesitation in giving a definitive date because service is somewhat dependent on external 
transit providers.  

Member Brunner said that the miniature transfer hub at the Municipal Building 
doesn’t have certain amenities, for example restroom access. She asked if riders could access 
municipal buildings. 

Ms. Schwing said yes, they can and there is a restroom in the Municipal Building on 
the first floor, but this is only when the building is open from 8:00am - 5:00pm and she said 
that they can communicate this.  

Member Brunner asked if it was high priority for covered protection for when it is 
raining, currently there isn’t any.  

Ms. Schwing said that currently it is not one because there had been a plan for 
several years to be a GoTriangle project to implement bus stop improvements, which is still in 
the process of being worked through.   

Member Brunner suggested removing the giant white rocks and replacing it with 
paver stones for enough room to get under the overhang at the Municipal Building to have 
some cover until the covered protection is built.  

Ms. Schwing said that they could check that.  
Member Brunner suggested signage at the miniature hub and a kiosk for a full bus 

schedule to be displayed. 
Ms. Schwing said that GoCary and GoApex recently added schedule information at 

their stops but probably not GoTriangle, they don’t typically print out a lot of copies of their 
ride guides and it’s not within Apex’s ability to provide that information, but she can request 
them to add more information. 



Councilmember Gantt said that Ms. Schwing and staff described many 
implementation issues that Council has tried to work with the County or GoTriangle and 
expressing these at venues other than this meeting and directly speaking to them at CAMPO 
or a higher-level public meeting would be valuable.    

Member Brunner said she does every survey and if staff helps her and the rest of the 
Board know when there are opportunities to provide feedback, she will gladly go to 
meetings. She also noted a majority of the meetings are nearly impossible to get to by bus.  

Vice Chair Toppe asked regarding major tasks for FY26, if there are additional staff or 
additional fleet needed, is that contracted through a third party entirely or is that provided by 
the town.  

Ms. Schwing said currently we contract with GoCary through a service agreement as a 
turnkey agreement. She said that the door-to-door service is contracted with GoWake Access 
(County Transportation Service). She continued with an update about funding for service 
through a mix of Community Funding Area (CFA) grants and local funding.  

Member Brunner asked about the concept of completely fare-free service for 
everyone in Apex. 

Ms. Schwing said that it is well supported so far and the circular study was planned to 
be a free service and there is less work when money isn’t collected, but as of right now there 
is no plan to change from a free service for GoApex. 

Member Brunner said that the GoTriangle pass and fare program is a good system, 
especially for low-income riders and it means that the rider is scanned which means that there 
is data for statistics.  

Councilmember Gantt said that GoTriangle will probably be free in the future. 
[SLIDE 14] 

 
Ms. Schwing said that there was a difference in how GoTriangle operates and Apex 

operates because they get a significant fraction of their fares from employer funded transit 
programs, which are a significant funding source.  
 
[TRANSIT PLANS OVERVIEW] 



 
 
 
[CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN] 
 
 Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager, gave foundational and background 
information for Transit and Bicycle and Pedestrian items that will come before the Board. She 
gave the following presentation. 
[SLIDE 1] 

 
[SLIDE 2] 

 



[SLIDE 3] 

 
[SLIDE 4] 

 
 Ms. Cox asked if there were any questions. 
 Member Brunner asked what the status of the passenger rail is and the realistic 
projection of when a passenger rail may be in Apex. 
 Ms. Cox said that currently there wasn’t a funded project to bring passenger rail to 
Apex. She said that currently it is being worked on for Raleigh to Wake Forest and Raleigh to 
Richmond, but nothing south of Raleigh and there is passenger rail that comes through Apex 
but there is not a stop. She said the next step to bring passenger rail to Apex and other areas 
south would be a corridor identification program and she gave an overview of the process 
and the feasibility study and there is not a timeline. She said that NCDOT is actively working 
on passenger rails across the State. 
 Member Brunner asked what the goal percentage was for future expanded routes to 
have covered benches.  
 Ms. Cox said that there wasn’t a goal percentage for cover, it’s the enhanced bus 
stops that would have a cover. 



 Ms. Schwing said that there is a bus stop improvement policy and the goal is that 
every bus stop has a bench and there is also a category for enhanced bus stops which 
includes shelter, trashcan and bike racks and prioritization process depends on certain 
factors. She said that the policy is on their website and she can share it with the Board as well. 
She said that it is complex to add benches and shelters, but it is being worked toward.  
 Member Brunner said that in other municipalities if they can’t deliver covered bus 
stops that citizens and volunteers are creating them.  
 Councilmember Gantt said that he had advocated a better ration of the matching 
funds from Wake County Transit but it has not been successful so far and it should be easier 
than it is.  
 
[INTRODUCTION TO PEAK PLAN 2055] 
 
 Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager said this is an introduction to the Peak 
Plan 2055 and the Town’s comprehensive plan and the biggest long-range plan, it’s a 30-year 
vision. She said that the mission of this Board is to share information with the community 
related to transportation. She gave the following presentation: 
[SLIDE 1] 

 



[SLIDE 2] 

 
[SLIDE 3] 

 
 Member Brunner asked what specifically can be done for bus riders as far as the 
survey, and if there could be a link and flyers on the bus while people are riding. 
 Ms. Cox said there will be a postcard with a QR code. 
 Member Brunner asked if it would be a card that would be taken on the bus. 
 Mr. Watson said that it would be on the interior bus channel panels. 
 Member Brunner said that wasn’t ideal because of the ability to read the transit board 
depending on where you are seated, so a “take it with you” would be a better option and, 
some don’t have a smart phone to read QR codes.   
 Ms. Cox said they are currently working to get it on the bus and will somehow provide 
copies in the brochure holders.  
 Member Brunner suggested a new multiple-tiered rack like the one on the 
GoTriangle bus. 



 Ms. Cox said that Apex doesn’t own the buses, but they will see what the options are. 
She said that there are yard signs that have been used to advertise the plan and they could 
see if they could be moved to some key bus stops.  
 Member Kirley asked when the Peak Plan would be finalized. 
 Ms. Cox said it is planned as an 18-month process and it is in phase one of three 
phases.  
 
[INFORMATIONAL UPDATES] 
 
[SLIDE 1] 

 
[SLIDE 2] 

 
 Member Brunner asked if there was data for affluent homeowners and what’s the 
data on how easy it is to convert them into being passenger rail riders in the outskirts of 
metropolitan area. 

Ms. Cox asked in terms of giving up a car vs. commuting on rail.  



Member Brunner said that are areas of the country where rail is popular in wealthy 
suburban areas. She asked how do you get Veridea people or how likely that they will be 
heavy users of passenger rail. 

Ms. Cox said that it is probably more of a regional question than what could be taken 
on looking at rail to Apex. She said that Ms. Schwing had looked into Veridea and whether it 
could support rain in the future through a study that had been abandoned.  

Ms. Schwing said the outlook wasn’t looking good for just using rail and new lines 
haven’t performed well as places like in New York and Boston, it presents a challenge if the 
line has to be built and the cost benefit prospect wouldn’t make sense at this time. 

Member Brunner gave information on the Transit Propensity Index Score; she said 
that it is a question of how hard it is to convince the increasingly affluent people in the area to 
consider transit. 

 Member Spanioli said that it comes down to convenience, like if you have to walk a 
mile to the nearest transit it isn’t going to be used and this is a suburban town and there isn’t 
a bus stop at every corner.  

Councilmember Gantt said that Apex scores are low in the scores that were 
described and the maps in Western Wake County are amongst the lowest of the scores. He 
said that everybody has a car or two in Apex and so this competes with the cars and 
convenience and this has been an uphill battle, but Apex is trying.  

Member Williams asked for confirmation of the recommendation to remove the spur 
from the plan because it was not feasible without Federal funding and this would be done at 
the next Planning meeting. 

Ms. Cox said that was right. She said there was also commitment within Veridea 
zoning commitments to reserve the right-of-way for future rail and they would be working 
with Veridea to provide that bus transit center to serve more bus frequency.   
[SLIDE 3] 

 
 
 
 



 
[OTHER BUSINESS] 
 
 Mr. Watson turned the meeting back to the Board for Other Business or further 
discussion.  
 Chair Barrett asked if there was any further business or discussion. 
 Member Brunner said that there is an issue with the new bus with GoApex and 
GoCary. She said there is a slope as you board and a steep ramp to get up and unless the bus 
is close to the curb and lowers the bus, the passenger must jump from the curb onto the bus. 
She has taken pictures and sent to staff and Chair Barrett. She gave some solutions for the 
issue and said that there is a need for communication with riders that the bus makes 
accessibility easier and to have it as a standard procedure for them to help those who are 
vulnerable to getting on the bus.  
 Mr. Watson said this had been noticed on the new buses and they could work with 
GoCary in making sure that they communicate with their bus operators on a standard 
operating procedure for operators to use.  
 Chair Barrett asked if there was any other business and with none, she adjourned the 
meeting.  
 
 
[ADJOURN] 
 
 

Chair Barrett announced the meeting adjourned at 5:35pm 
 
 

Linda Barrett 
Chair   

  
Submitted for consideration and approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman.  
 
Minutes approved on the 14th day of January 2026. 
 




